

## Contents

Glossary	3
Overview	4
Getting Started	5
Families	9
List of Traits	12
Game States	14
The Political System	21
Progress Cloud	27
National Laws	28
Newspapers	29
Delegations	29
Events	30
Scenario Mode	31
The City Data Window	31
The Top Bar	32
Credits	33
Limited Software Warranty	
and License Agreement	35
Technical Support and Customer Service	39

## Glossary

**Brain power:** Generated by the school system, higher brain power points accelerate research.

Edict: A city law or decision voted on and passed by the City Council.

**Era:** One of the five time spans in **Urban Empire**. The player's character changes at the end of each era.

**Event:** Presents the player with an in-game situation and asks him or her to choose a solution; outcomes depend on the player's choice and on the game world.

**Family:** A set of five characters, one per era, that a player will experience and who share a broadly similar group of traits that affect their interaction with the game world.

**Happiness:** The citizens' satisfaction with their lives, which determines their political allegiance to the game's political parties.

**Invention:** New ideas or technologies that a player can bring to the city through research.

**Political compass:** A compass that shows how political parties behave, with two axes: left vs. right wing and liberal vs. conservative.

**Wheel of Life:** measurements of satisfaction in six life areas that determine a citizen's happiness, including fun, social life, security, health, physical environment, and personal growth.

## Overview

**Urban Empire** thrusts you into the role of a mayor tasked with constructing and modifying districts of a city, maintaining its buildings and businesses, caring for and employing its citizens, upgrading its infrastructure, managing its economy, and engaging with its councilors, rights, laws, and political parties over the span of decades and centuries.

As you move from era to era, from smithies and thermodynamics to combustion, hydraulics, and the right to vote, the complexity of your settlement grows, demanding a keen eye for detail and the will to shape a societal landscape in whatever direction you see fit.

The game plays out over three main areas: the **City View**, which shows the bustle of the city buildings and district layout, the **City Council**, which displays the chambers where councilors debate and vote on edicts and proposals, and a progress view, called the **Progress Cloud**, that lays out the path you will take to municipal technologies with a direct historical counterpart. A wealth of information is available in the city data screen for those who like to know everything, from how citizens feel to what businesses employ them.

The mayor info screen reveals the changes in the nature and fortunes of your player character.

Whether you embark on a centuries-long campaign or jump into a readymade scenario, your decisions will affect the lives of those under your influence. Will you reach the goals assigned to you by fate, ambition, and a fast-developing world?

## **Getting Started**

Once you have started the game, you will be met by the **Game menu**, with the **New game**, **Load game**, **Settings**, **Credits**, and **Exit game** options.

Left-clicking **New game** opens the new game window, which offers you the choice of starting a **new campaign** or a **new scenario**. A new campaign starts you in Era I on a map with no districts and a family member of your choice. Your decision determines your starting attributes and funds.

The object of the campaign is to progress through each era until you reach a win state by completing the tasks in the **Victory progress** window.



But let's not get ahead of ourselves. Things will heat up soon enough!

If you chose to start the campaign with the **Tutorial** checkbox enabled, you will be instructed by an **advisor** on how to play the game and must complete the objectives set out. If you start without the tutorial, the following steps will familiarize you with the game's main views and objectives.

## Click New Game and Campaign

You will be transported to the location of your city.

## Create the First District

6

Use the **Create district** button and **Draw district** function to start creating your first district.



Press and hold the left mouse button to draw the basic area. Right-click the edge of the area to add more corners. Note that sharp angles are not tolerated and that districts must be connected to a road and be above a predetermined size. The larger the district, the higher the monthly cost of its upkeep.

Place the **City Hall** to establish the district and propose the district using personal funding to pay for its establishment.



- 1.) Move the mouse pointer with the **City Hall** attached to your desired location and use left-click on your mouse.
- 2.) Click Propose district and select Use personal funding.

Your district is now created! Before proceeding to the next step, it's probably a good idea to give citizens a few months to move in.

## Add Grammar School

Click the district name plate, then click to modify the district and add a grammar school to the city. This will provide you with some initial brain power, which is needed to research new inventions in the **Progress Cloud**.

## Research an Invention in Progress Cloud View

- 1.) Click the **Progress Cloud** button and choose one of the available inventions.
- 2.) Click Start research.



There is a lot more to the game, but this should get you started! While playing you will be switching between the **City**, **City Council**, and **Progress Cloud** views, managing districts, navigating events, reading newspaper headlines, viewing and upgrading individual buildings, following the economy and the happiness of your citizens.

For more information on each aspect of the game, see the individual chapters of this manual.

## Families

Family values shape reality in **Urban Empire**; the upbringing your character received alters your starting point and political leanings, challenging you to pursue or diverge from the family legacy.



In the game, you play as a representative of one of four family lines, each of which has its own crest, creed, and traits that are expressed differently in each playable family member. Each trait affects multiple systems in the game. One character is available at the beginning of each campaign and more are accessed as you proceed through the four eras of **Urban Empire**.

## The von Pfilzen Family

A family of landed gentry, the von Pfilzens are hardline conservative aristocrats with a strong military tradition. Their manor has overlooked the same estate grounds, fields and forests since the early fourteenth century, and throughout the reign of three different countries. The von Pfilzens, traditionalists, believe in social hierarchy and the need for national stability in a changing world.



## Starting character: Gerbert von Pfilzen

A cruel, unsympathetic aristocrat, Gerbert von Pfilzen values empire and power over all else. His harsh upbringing in strict, militaristic nobility has left him emotionally repressed. Although respected, he tolerates no perceived incompetence and deals ruthlessly with anything he perceives as insubordination.

Extremely loyal to the empire, Gerbert believes the emperor has a Godgiven right to rule. He will protect the realm and "get things done," letting no one stand in his way.

As Gerbert, you inherit the Cruel and Luddite traits.

## The Sant' Elias Family

The Sant' Elias family, patrons of inventors and innovators, believe in solving problems through technology. Known for their ravenous appetite for ideas and advancement and their furious disdain for established traditions and conservatism, they are notorious risk takers, a trait that is plain in their personal lives, where they can seem aloof and alienated from the needs of the people.



## **Starting character: Giuseppe Sant' Elias**

Giuseppe, the eldest son of the science advisor to the Austrian emperor, was urged by his father to pursue hard science, but was more fascinated by architecture. He felt that the ornate buildings of the empire were outdated and envisioned a bold new architecture of straight lines and functional spaces, focusing on the needs of the people more directly than ever before.

As Giuseppe, you inherit the **Progressive** and **Solitarian** traits.

## The Kilgannon Family

A working-class family with a history of involvement in politics and the labour rights movement, the Kilgannons have risen from grassroots community activists to major players on the city's political scene. Respected as heroes of the people, their dedication has made them popular with the proletariat. Their contributions to society are appreciated, but their benevolence has led to increased costs in building prices.



## **Starting character: Conor Kilgannon**

Conor Kilgannon grew up working along his famous father, Patrick Kilgannon. With his father's trusted aide, he grew to care about the wellbeing of his co-workers. When the Emperor of Austria called on his best Irish foreman, famous for efficiency and a low death rate at construction sites, to supervise the founding of a new city, Patrick declined politely and sent his son in his stead.

As Conor Kilgannon you inherit the **Honest** and **Optimist** traits.

## The Shuysky Family

The Shuyskys, a family of Russian emigrants, pride themselves on being cultured and civil patrons of the arts and theatre. While on the surface they seem unassuming, even indifferent to political power, and none of their rivals view them as much of a threat, their awareness of and care in observing social obligations puts them in good standing with everyday citizens as well as other politicians.

Since dabbling in politics is new to them, they can boast of no particular experience in the field, but sometimes disruptive forces rise from surprising sources.



## Starting character: Vasiliy Shuysky

Vasiliy Shuysky has gained a reputation as a talented banker and a refined patron of the arts. His family fortunes grew when the Austrian Emperor granted him the opportunity to oversee the building of a new city to connect Vienna to the Adriatic Sea. Aware that families of Jewish origin have often faced persecution, Vasiliy views this development as a chance to build a safe haven for all those who are interested in free thinking and love art.

As Vasiliy Shuysky you inherit the Socialite, Honest, and Elitist traits.

## **How Character Values Affect Gameplay**

## **Brain power**

The higher your mayor's brain power, the quicker research will be completed, unlocking new buildings and effects.

### Prestige

The more prestige your mayor has, the more unfavorable votes you can overturn.

## Political goodwill

On the basis of traits and character, some parties will be more inclined to like or hate the player, changing the potential sensible alliances quite drastically.

### Personal funds

The more personal funds a mayor has, the more event choices he or she can select and additions to the city he or she can pay for directly, bypassing the political process.

#### Citizen bonuses

Some characters and traits appeal to certain social classes or age groups more than others, making it easier or harder to make certain citizens happy.

# €\$>

## List of Traits



**Cruel:** You are an evil sadist who takes pleasure in others' suffering.



**Cynical:** You trust no one and see hidden motives in everything.



Deceitful: You are manipulative and dishonest by nature.



Elitist: You are accustomed to dealing with the upper class and have little understanding for regular people.



**Honest:** You value honesty above all else.



**Gullible:** You lack willpower and are easily persuaded.



**Luddite:** You believe that the slower the change, the happier

the society.



**Optimist:** You truly believe in people and in good.



**Pessimist:** You are pessimistic about everything.



**Populist:** You favor simple, forceful answers to complicated

issues.



**Progressive:** You believe in progress and new ideas.



**Socialite:** You are famous for being famous.



**Soft:** You are not afraid to wear your heart on sleeve.



Solitarian: You value your privacy a lot more than other

people's company.

## Game States

The game has four main states in which you'll spend your time. The actions you can take in these states will be covered in the chapters of this manual.

The **City View** is where you'll spend much of your time, building and modifying districts and adding services, infrastructure, and institutions. It's the only state in which time flows forward.

The **City Council** is where you make political decisions, where all of your proposals will be approved or rejected; in it you can change taxes or funding, propose edicts, and deal with the game's political parties.

The **Progress Cloud** is where you decide which inventions your city administration will become familiar with. You'll unlock new gameplay features, edicts, services, infrastructure, and business areas.

The **Delegation View** is where you'll deal with other cities. It is unlocked last, allowing you to send business delegations and form twin-city partnerships with other cities, bringing bonuses to certain elements of your city.



## The City View

The City View displays the city and terrain, allowing you to place and upgrade districts, services, and institutions.

## **Citizens**

The citizens are the atoms of the game. They live in residential buildings, work in the city's companies, and shop in its stores. The happier they are, the better they work. Citizens vote for political parties on the basis of their satisfaction with the different aspects of their lives. Each citizen has a gender, social class, and age group that determine his or her individual demand for six needs.

Those six needs – the Wheel of Life – are **Fun, Social Life, Personal Growth, Health, Safety, and Physical Environment**. Municipal services, institutions, and infrastructures offer these services, but citizens can also acquire them by shopping with related businesses. The higher the citizens' tax rate, the less cash citizens have to shop with, but the more services you can provide to everyone.

The game rates satisfaction as follows: If a citizen obtains everything from a service that he or she desires, he or she will express a full +10 satisfaction with that service. If a citizen receives nothing he or she wants from the service, the game will record an absolute -10 satisfaction rating. Other satisfaction values lie between +10 and -10. To learn more about the six needs, consult the information window in the game's main UI view.



## Districts, Zoning and Infrastructure

In **Urban Empire** cities are built one **district** at a time. Each district has a **running cost** and gains **revenue**, which impact the city's monthly budget balance. Districts are where all buildings, companies, and citizens are located. As you progress in the game, you will be able to adjust a district's **zoning** and **grid infrastructure** after clicking on the district map icon and then on **Modify district**.

Districts must be connected to the main road by being located directly next to it or connected to other districts. Districts have three zoning options, affording space for residential, commercial, and industrial areas. The density of the district determines the size and density of its buildings.

While service buildings can reach several districts in their area of influence, **infrastructure** only affects the district in which it is built.

To view and modify a district:

- 1.) Click the gold-framed **District** icon on the map.
- Click the General info, Infrastructure, Services, Happiness, Residents, or Business button to view information about the district.
- Click General info and then Modify district to access the District zoning, Infrastructure, Place services, and District overview buttons.
  - a. Adjust the **District density** and **Area** bars in the **District zoning** window. Click **Confirm zoning**.

#### Note

Use the RCI indicator (indicator for different zoning demands; Residential – Commercial – Industrial) to help you zone more space for those areas with high demand. If demand is low, you may have zoned too much space. Recession, building size upgrades, and other elements can also affect demand. Follow the RCI indicator for an overview of the current situation.

b. Click to add the grids you would like to enable for the district.
 Different grids enable more concrete infrastructure items.
 Enabling grids has a direct cost and incurs a running cost.
 Click Confirm infrastructure.

#### Note

Plenty of infrastructures influence traffic points. Each company and citizen engaging in work consumes traffic points in a district. If the district is overusing its traffic points, companies begin to suffer. Traffic congestion is a good indicator of a need for upgraded roads, traffic lights, a bus or another new transport network.

- c. Click the entry for any service you would like to add to the map; the icon for that service will attach itself to the mouse pointer. Click a viable location on the map and then **Confirm** services.
- 4.) Click **Propose district** and **Normal vote** or **Expedited vote** to submit the proposal.

## **Municipal Services**



Municipal services are offered through buildings added to a district map in the City View by clicking the gold-framed City district icon then the

**Modify district** button to open the **Place services** window. Municipal services offer their effects to everyone within the service range, unlike shops, where citizens must pay for services, and which therefore do not influence everyone.

Each service – whether a municipal service or a shop – has an **optimal service range** and **secondary service range**. Areas within the service range receive the service bonuses offered by the service building. The optimal range area provides full service benefits, while areas within the secondary range receive inferior service benefits. The optimal service range varies based on the quality of the service. **Quality**, on the other hand, is always determined by the happiness of the middle class workers in the municipal service or company.

Left-clicking a service building will allow you to **endorse**, **demolish**, or **relocate** the service. Selecting endorse adds to the quality of the service, increasing the optimal service range. **Demolish** demolishes the service, erasing it and costing you some **prestige** and **personal funds**.

The **efficiency** of a municipal service determines the price of its upkeep.

## Institutions

**Institutions** offer bonuses to the entire city, unlike municipal services whose range is limited to their **secondary service range**. Institutions include hospitals, courthouses, water and electric plants, ports, and universities.

Once unlocked by researching a path in the **Progress Cloud** view, institutions can be placed by left-clicking the **Place institution** button in the **City View**, which opens the **Place institution** window.

Clicking an institution entry in the **Place institution** window will attach the institution building to the mouse pointer. Clicking on the map in an appropriate place will select the proposed location for the building; clicking **Confirm institution** will open the **Vote on new institution** window, which offers the choice of submitting the proposal for a **normal vote**, an **expedited vote** at the expense of some prestige, or if available, to immediate production using **private funding**.

Institutions can be upgraded with the **Upgrade institution** button or relocated by clicking **Relocate institution**. Some of the institutions have predetermined locations while most can be placed wherever you want.

## **Economy**

The **economy** of your city determines the quantity and quality of services, businesses, and institutions you can afford. Your player character has **personal funds** in addition to the **city funds**, which you can use to accelerate certain developments.

City funds come mainly from **taxes** imposed on the income of either **companies** or **citizens**. The higher the business tax rate, the more successful companies must be in making sales. Sales are based on a company's quality and efficiency, which in turn are influenced by the happiness of the citizens working in that company. You need to optimize how and whom to make happy if you want to avoid sweatshop conditions in your city.

City funds can be allocated after a proposal is debated and accepted by means of a city council vote. Personal funds may be used to bypass the voting system at the expense of your character's personal fortune.

If your city funds drop into the negative range – if you owe money – the district councilors are unlikely to support the introduction of new services or institutions in a vote, however often you **appeal** to parties in an attempt to sway them in favor of your proposal. This may lead to a situation in which the only proposal the council will accept is one to raise taxes or cut funding of certain services. However, in some cases, large tax increases will not provide enough funds for quick reinvestment.

## Company types

There are two types of companies in this game: **industrial companies** produce refined resources such as metal and are usually least vulnerable to dissatisfied employees. **Commercial companies** include cafés, pubs, video arcades and music stores in which citizens can purchase one of the six wheel of life services that make them happy and satisfied.

Each company provides workplaces for its citizens. From workplaces citizens receive salaries they can use to shop for services and pay taxes. The higher the citizen tax rate, the less they can afford to shop at companies for services and the more you, being the mayor, must provide for their needs by means of municipal services.

Every company has at least one middle-class workplace and one workingclass workplace. Companies also have infrastructural needs that, with staff happiness, determine the company's quality and efficiency. Efficiency determines the maximum number of sales a company can make, while quality determines how many sales it will make. Shops resemble municipal services in the sense that quality dictates their service range. Conversely, efficiency determines the maximum number of citizens that can shop at a store each month.

## Other Elements in City View

You can click each residential building in a city district to open a window showing its **building density**, the **happiness** of its residents and the **parties** they support. Clicking **Protect building** will ensure that as time passes or you increase the density of a district, this building won't be allowed to be replaced. Clicking **Demolish building** deletes the building, costing the player some funds and prestige.

Clicking an **industrial building** or business shows its **building density** and the production values for the commodity it produces. Clicking **Promote business** will increase the quality of the company.

Left-clicking the gold-framed **District** icon in the center of a district displays the local **District population**, **District traffic usage**, **Most popular party**, **District happiness**, **District employment**, and **District companies** for a quick overview of a city's current state.

Left-clicking on the **District** icon also displays a **Demolish district** and a **Modify district** button.

## The Political System

The political system is at the heart of **Urban Empire**. Every time you propose a new use of city funds, the decision is submitted as a proposal to the city council. The council itself consists of political parties, each of which has its own agenda. The parties will support or oppose your proposals depending on what the decision concerns, the party's agenda, and fluctuations in power linked to the game's districts.

The **City Council** view allows you to interact directly with the council on issues involving the use of public funds. It displays information about the current political parties, council members, and your standing with them; and lets you submit proposals to raise and lower taxes and service funding, to issue edicts to change the behaviors and freedoms of citizens and companies, and to attempt to influence councilors in these votes. Multiple proposals can be submitted to the council at the same time.

The **Political compass** shows a party's position to the left or right and to conservative or liberal. A party can be **conservative left**, **conservative right**, **liberal left**, **liberal right**, or anything in between.

#### Note

A party's name is not a direct indication of its position on the left or right; historically the first liberal parties were laissez-faire, wanting as little government meddling and as few public services as possible.



Each party has an insignia such as a crown, an eagle, or a shield. Clicking a party insignia button over a party member on the council benches will also open the window for that party.

## General Council UI



The **City Council** options bar in the bottom center of the screen contains the **Council overview**, **Political parties**, **Edicts**, **Taxation**, and **Service funding** buttons. Clicking any of those buttons will open one or more topic-specific information windows to the right of the screen.

The **Council overview** window shows the number of **City Council** members currently belonging to each current political party, and the **city budget** in terms of the city's **taxation**, **funding**, and **budget**.

The **Political parties** window shows each party's **council members**, **discipline**, **party values**, and **current support** as an overall percentage of the city's population, and then that percentage is further broken down into the proportion of **elite**, **upper class**, **working class**, **student**, and **lower class** citizens making up that support. It also indicates how many **important edicts** the party regards as significant, and its feelings towards your character in terms of **support**, **neutral**, and **dislike**. It also displays the party's current **goodwill** towards the player's character.

Edicts displays any active edicts and available edicts, including citizens, morale, welfare, administration, and environment, and the cost per

month for any active edicts. The Active edicts and Available edicts buttons open their respective windows. Taxation shows the current active tax, including the current business tax and citizen tax in thousands per month and as a tax percentage. It shows the tax revenue in thousands per month.

## **Taxation**

Raising and lowering tax is essential to maintaining revenue in **Urban Empire**. Each time you want to change a city's tax, submit a proposal to the **City Council** for a vote.

Left-clicking the **Propose tax** button in the **City Council** view will open the **Edit tax** window, where you can adjust the **Business tax** and **Citizen tax** bars to your preferred level before clicking the large **Propose tax** button to present the proposal to the council for debate and voting.

In other words, to submit a tax proposal:

- Click the Taxation button in the bottom center of the City Council view.
- 2.) Click the **Propose tax** button at the bottom right of the screen.
- 3.) Adjust **business tax** and **citizen tax** to your preferred level in the **Edit tax** window.
- 4.) Click **Propose tax** to submit the proposal.
- 5.) Click **Begin voting** to start the vote if the preparation is finished.

#### Note

The Political compass shows the parties you can expect to vote for or against the currently selected proposed change. If the pointer of a party insignia is in the pink, it is likely that the majority of the members of that party will vote against the proposal. If the party insignia points to green, most of its party members will probably vote for the proposal. Yellow indicates a majority neutral stance; in other words, roughly half of the party will vote for the proposal and half against it.

## **Service Funding**

In **Urban Empire** municipal services have five levels of funding; changes to that level can be proposed to the city council for a vote. The changes affect all municipal services of that type.

1.) Click the **Service funding** button in the **City Council** view.

Service funding shows the active funding of city services as proposed for debate by the player and decided by council vote, including the cost of all the services in the currently selected category. The categories are All Categories, Mayor's Funds, Health Care, Education, Culture, Environment, and Administration.

- 2.) Click Adjust funding.
- 3.) In the **Manage funding** window, click the entry for a service to open a **Service funding** window for that service.
- Click the + or button to propose an increase or decrease in funding for that service.

### **Edicts**

**Edicts** are submitted for approval in the **City Council** view. Once passed by vote, they regulate the freedoms and behaviors of the city's citizens and companies. Edicts must be researched and unlocked through the **Progress Cloud** view.

Once one or more edicts are available, you can propose its being made law in the **City Council**. Clicking the **Edicts** button will open the **Available edicts** window which shows the **effects**, **cost**, and the length of the **voting process** required for ratification for each edict.

Edicts under debate appear as a red flag to the left of the screen.

## Influencing a Vote Through Appeals

During the run-up to a vote, you can try to influence the outcome with political parties using the **Plead**, **Demand**, and **Threaten** buttons, which will ask you to choose from several choices. Each of those choices will have different effects such as swaying voters to your cause, causing the

party to dislike you a little, or both. The **Next party** button switches between political parties.

#### Note

The sooner you make an appeal in the run-up to a vote, the more likely it is to achieve the desired effect of swaying members of a party to your cause.

To appeal to council members after a vote is set in motion:

- 1.) Click the flag for a currently open debate.
- 2.) Click the **Next party** button to switch between political parties.
- 3.) Select the **Plead**, **Demand**, or **Threaten** buttons for the party you want to persuade. Note that many of the options have a cost in popularity.
- 4.) Select an option from the resulting window. The results of your attempt will be displayed, and the option to appeal to that party will be grayed out.
- 5.) Repeat steps 2 to 4 as necessary for each remaining party.
- 6.) Repeat steps 1 to 5 after a month of game time has passed.
- 7.) Click **Begin voting** to start the vote if the preparation is finished.

Each level of increased funding will add to values in the game such as **personal growth**, the number of **middle-class workplaces**, a **quality bonus** for the services, or the **range** of a service. As the level increases, so does the **cost** of the service.

#### <u>Note</u>

You can make one appeal to each party once a month for as long as a vote is being prepared.

## Finalizing the Vote

Proposals currently under debate are flagged on the left of the screen with a scale icon. Clicking on a proposal flag will open a **Voting in preparation** layout that displays the name of the vote in question, a **Projected for and against** bar underneath, with numbers against a red, green, and bronze circle background showing the projected number of votes against, still

undecided, and for the proposal, respectively.

The party insignias are placed along a bar whose color shifts from red (against) to green (in favor of), indicating where the majority of the party's members are expected to vote. A graphic of a scale gives a quick visual indication of whether the green thumbs-up projected "in favor of" votes or red thumbs-down projected "against" votes are currently ahead.



The **Begin voting**, **Appeal to parties**, and **Exit voting** buttons at the bottom allow you to begin or exit a vote or "appeal" to members of each party in an attempt to sway them towards an "in favor of" vote.

## Progress Cloud



The campaign mode takes the player through the five eras of the game, each tied to the in-game calendar year. Each era has its own research path and specific changes to the political and economic landscape of the game.

Era I – the Industrial Revolution, which lasts from 1820 to 1860, has 8 inventions and lets you become familiar with the city building aspects of the game before serious challenges occur.

Era II – the Birth of National Identity, which lasts from 1860 to 1913, has 13 inventions and introduces more political parties with a larger impact on themes of national awakening. Citizens demand more services as the level of wealth increases.

**Era III – the Conflict of Values, which lasts from 1917 to 1939**, has 18 inventions and changes the landscape considerably. Now in a newly independent country, you need to win elections and ensure that extreme ideologies on the left and right do not receive enough support to throw you out of power.

Era IV – The Dualism, which lasts from 1948 to 1990, has 19 inventions and covers the Cold War era. It sees the rise of youth culture, the environmental movement, and a sexual revolution.

Era V – The Fragmentation of Values, which lasts from 1990 to 2020,

has 18 inventions and covers times that are contemporaneous with the release of **Urban Empire**. It sees the rise of internet culture and populist movements.

Clicking on an available invention will show the **cost** and **research time** for the invention to the right of the screen. Clicking the **Start research** button will begin the research process and add a research readout to the left of the bar at the top of the screen, showing the name of the research, the options that will unlock upon completion, and the time to completion as indicated by the proportion of the green circle drawn around the research icon.

Only one invention can be researched at a time. Once the research is complete, the research readout will disappear; a window will appear listing the unlocked options and effects, which are now deployed and available in-game.

# National Laws

**National laws** have a much greater impact than edicts. They take longer to process and represent the current status of the society in terms of the modernity and advancement of the legislation of the nation in which the player's city is located. National laws have several very important effects on the city.

National laws provide a boost to the city's brain power production, allowing the player to unlock new inventions faster. They also provide a temporary boost to satisfaction in the respective aspect of civic life, as citizens are pleased to have more rights and freedoms. However, they also increase the demand for the six Wheel of Life services, making it harder to keep citizens happy in the long term.

National laws allow you to determine the kind of society you want to build. The benefit of a monoculture in which everyone is pressured to look, behave, and think the same is that its citizens do not know any better and are easier to satisfy. However, a monoculture requires that you take care in choosing which inventions to unlock, as keeping pace with the rest of the world is challenging. A "progressive" society in which anyone can be whatever they want has its benefits, but a more enlightened population is harder to fool and requires more services to be satisfied. At times it might be politically savvy to go against your own personal beliefs to ensure you get elected. Then again, leaders need to lead, don't they? The choice is yours.

## Newspapers

Newspapers may appear at any time in the game offering information on changes within the game and are tied to the in-game year. The main news always covers an event in the visible game world. Minor news may offer valuable information about particular business areas or comment on events in the rest of the world at large.

Newspapers also report on the results of elections, which change the number and distribution of council members among the current political parties.



# 

The **Delegation view** is unlocked when you research an invention unlocking either **Twin-city** or **Business delegations**, allowing you to interact with eight cities around the world.

## **Twin Cities**

Sending a **Twin-city delegation** to a city forms a partnership with that city for the remainder of the era. First choose a location where you would like to send a delegation, then choose the **municipal service** or **institution** to

be represented in the twin-city partnership. Once you've finished, an event will launch in which your choice dictates the bonus the municipal service or institution will receive for the remainder of the era.

## **Business Delegations**

**Business delegations** work much like twin cities, with two major differences. You choose the businesses to accompany you in the delegation and therefore, the business areas that will receive the bonuses provided by the trip. Business delegations only create opportunities for specific companies, and the bonuses last for a specific time. When the effects wear off, you can send a new business delegation. The business areas are, again, location-oriented: Location determines the businesses you can choose to accompany you.





**Events** are one-off occurrences in the game that require you to choose from a number of options. They present complex topics in a contained way that often relates to decisions you have made. For example, if you have neglected health and sanitation, giving rise to an epidemic, an event might offer a choice of quarantining the district, sending in extra doctors, or imposing a city-wide curfew; each of these selections imposes distinct consequences.

Events appear to the left of the screen as text over a blue flag. Clicking an Event flag opens a window for the event that describes what has transpired and offers you two or more choices in response. Depending on the nature of the question and answer, your choice will affect certain values in the game and may add to your monthly outgoings or demand a vote or a one-off payment.

An event typically offers insight into the current state of the city. For example, a district with a particularly educated population may encounter an event requesting that a book club be opened at a local bar.

The outcomes of the events are dynamic. As you encounter the same events again, you may experience different outcomes even if you repeat a choice in the event itself.

# Scenario Mode

The **Scenario mode** throws you directly into specific situations with separate goals. Whereas the campaign tasks you with starting a city from scratch, scenarios give you a set of problems to solve in a pre-existing settlement with a pre-selected character.

# The City Data Window



The **City data** window can be accessed by clicking the **City data** button in the **City View**. It offers comprehensive information on nearly every aspect of your city. It helps you to compare the districts and see their differences. It also helps you to understand why citizens are satisfied or unhappy and how to improve the situation.



The right of the **Top bar** contains the current date and calendar month, the **Timelapse** bar, which fills with red as you near the end of the current calendar month, and the **Timelapse** button, which pauses and continues the game's timing system.

The center of the top bar is a quick-view information panel summarizing your current **party support** in the city, your **prestige**, your **brain power**, your **private funds**, and your **city funds**. Moving the mouse pointer over each button will cause a tip window to appear with the title of the value displayed. Moving the mouse pointer over **party support** will display the percentage of support from each party; moving it over **city funds** will display your city's monthly **revenue**, **expenses**, and **balance**.

The left of the top bar contains the current **time period**, the **city population**, and vertical bars displaying your city's current **residential demand**, **commercial demand**, and **industry demand**. It also contains the **Mayor info**, **Logbook**, and **Game options** buttons.

32

## Credits

#### KALYPSO MEDIA GROUP

GLOBAL MANAGING DIRECTOR

SIMON HELLWIG

FINANCE DIRECTOR
CHRISTOPH BENTZ

INTERNATIONAL
MARKETING DIRECTOR
ANIKA THUN

HEAD OF PRODUCING REINHARD DÖPFER

HEAD OF PRODUCT MANAGEMENT TIMO THOMAS

HEAD OF PR – GSA REGION Bernd Berheide

HEAD OF QA & SUBMISSION ROMAN EICH

**HEAD OF ART DEPARTMENT** Thabani Sihwa

PRODUCER
CHRISTIAN SCHLÜTTER
HELGE PEGLOW
MARTIN TOSTA

PRODUCT MANAGERS
DENNIS BLUMENTHAL
MARIAN DENEFLEH
UWE ROTH

LOCALISATION MANAGER
THOMAS NEES

ART DEPARTMENT

SIMONE-DESIRÉE RIESS Anna Owtschinnikow Sebastian Keil Tanja Thoma

QA & SUBMISSION MANAGERS

MARTIN TUGENDHAT JONATHAN WEGGEN TIM-OLIVER SIEGWART

VIDEO CUTTER
MICHELE BUSIELLO

SOCIAL MEDIA MANAGER BETTINA ALBERT

JUNIOR MARKETING MANAGER Christin Fiedler

MANAGEMENT ASSISTANT Tina Schreiner

SUPPORT & COMMUNITY
MANAGEMENT
TIM FREUND

COMMUNITY MANAGER
LARS RACKY

TOBIAS PRINZ

KALYPSO MEDIA UK

MANAGING DIRECTOR ANDREW JOHNSON

HEAD OF MARKETING & PR Mark Allen MARKETING & PR ASSISTANT

Alun Lower

FINANCE MANAGER Moira Allen

KALYPSO MEDIA USA

VICE PRESIDENT NORTH AMERICA

Andrew Johnson

VICE PRESIDENT SALES NORTH AMERICA & ASIA SHERRY HELLER

HEAD OF PR ALEX Q. RYAN

PR, MARKETING & SALES COORDINATOR

LINDSAY SCHNEIDER

BUSINESS OPERATIONS MANAGER Theresa Merino

KALYPSO MEDIA DIGITAL

MANAGING DIRECTOR JONATHAN HALES

PRODUCT MANAGER
ANDREW MCKERROW

PR, MARKETING &
PRODUCT MANAGER
PATRICK CAHILL

#### REBORN INTERACTIVE

CEO

ILKKA IMMONEN

ORIGINAL IDEA

Μικκο ΤΥΝΙ

LEAD ARTIST & ART DIRECTOR

NIII.O ALETHAN

PROJECT LEAD JUHO LYYTIKÄINEN

LEAD DESIGNER

Jussi Autio

DESIGNER

MIKKO KÄRKELA

UI DESIGNER & ARTIST

MATTI MANNER

LEAD PROGRAMMER

MATTI PULKKINEN

PROGRAMMERS

JAAKKO KOIVU ARTO HÄRKÖNEN AKI VÄÄTÄINEN

3D ARTISTS

MIRO VESTERINEN Tuukka Mäkinen ANTTI HEIKKINEN

EMILIA HAANPÄÄ (INTERN) IÑIGO ECHEVERRÍA (INTERN) JOONAS PAAKKUNAINEN (INTERN) AAPPO SALO

2D ARTISTS

ULYSSE VERHASSELT VELY NYSTRÖM

**OUALITY ASSURANCE** 

JUHANA MÄNTYMAA MATEJ KOMÁR

ADDITIONAL CONTENT CREATION COMPOSER

TAPANI SIIRTOLA

SOUND EFFECTS

TAPIO LIUKKONEN

VOICE OVERS

VOICE ACTOR

OUTSOURCING

RINGTAIL STUDIOS

3D ART

ALAN ORPIN (ENGLISH)

TONEWORX GMBH

RAISA RAUTIOLA

ADDITIONAL WRITING

CRISTIAN READ MATTI MCCAMBRIDGE

ADDITIONAL ART

Μικκό Τυνι JUHA AALTO KALLE MURONRANTA

JANNE PAUNI

PEKKA SAARI

OFFICE ASSISTANTS

SIRPA IMMONEN Essi Wäck

SPECIAL THANKS

JANI IMMONEN SAMULI LAUTJÄRVI PETRI PEKKARINEN TANELI ROININEN JERE RANTA TAPANI RANTALA TOBIAS LOTZ **IIRO ENGES** 

HARSHITA BHAVSAR ALEKSANDER NIKULIN

LASSE NUMMINEN TEEMU ROIVAINEN

TIMO ELSILÄ TUOMAS SALMELA

TANELI PURSIAINEN KRISTIAN SIVONEN

ANTTI PÖLLÄNEN

HANS ZENJUGA

MARK ROBERTS TIIMA RY

FRIENDS & FAMILY OF ALL REBORN PEOPLE

**PLAYTESTERS** 

## Limited Software Warranty and License Agreement

YOUR USE OF THIS SOFTWARE IS SUBJECT TO THIS LIMITED SOFTWARE WARRANTY AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (THE "AGREEMENT") AND THE TERMS SET FORTH BELOW. THE "SOFTWARE" INCLUDES ALL SOFTWARE INCLUDED WITH THIS AGREEMENT, THE ACCOMPANYING MANUAL (S), PACKAGING AND OTHER WRITTEN, ELECTRONIC OR ON-LINE MATERIALS OR DOCUMENTATION, AND ANY AND ALL COPIES OF SUCH SOFTWARE AND ITS MATERIALS. BY OPENING THE SOFTWARE, INSTALLING, AND/OR USING THE SOFTWARE AND ANY OTHER MATERIALS INCLUDED WITH THE SOFTWARE, YOU HEREBY ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THIS LICENSE WITH [KALYPSO MEDIA UK Ltd.] ("LICENSOR").

#### LICENSE

Subject to this Agreement and its terms and conditions, LICENSOR hereby grants you the non-exclusive, non-transferable, limited right and license to use one copy of the Software for your personal use on a single home or portable computer. The Software is being licensed to you and you hereby acknowledge that no title or ownership in the Software is being transferred or assigned and this Agreement should not be construed as a sale of any rights in the Software. All rights not specifically granted under this Agreement are reserved by LICENSOR and, as applicable, its licensors.

#### **OWNERSHIP**

LICENSOR retains all right, title and interest to this Software, including, but not limited to. all copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, trade names, proprietary rights, patents, titles, computer codes, audiovisual effects, themes, characters, character names, stories, dialog, settings, artwork, sounds effects, musical works, and moral rights. The Software is protected by United Kingdom copyright law and applicable copyright laws and treaties throughout the world. The Software may not be copied, reproduced or distributed in any manner or medium, in whole or in part, without prior written consent from

#### LICENSOR

Any persons copying, reproducing or distributing all or any portion of the Software in any manner or medium, will be willfully violating the copyright laws and may be subject to civil and criminal penalties. Be advised that Copyright violations are subject to penalties of up to £100,000 per violation. The Software contains certain licensed materials and LICENSOR's licensors may protect their rights in the event of any violation of this Agreement.

#### LICENSE CONDITIONS

You agree not to:

(a) Commercially exploit the Software;

(b) Distribute, lease, license, sell, rent or otherwise transfer or assign this Software, or any copies of this Software, without the express prior written consent of LICENSOR:

(c) Make copies of the Software or any part thereof, except for back up or archival purposes; (d) Except as otherwise specifically provided by the Software or this Agreement, use or install the Software (or permit others to do same) on a network, for on-line use, or on more than one computer, computer terminal, or workstation at the same time;(e) Copy the Software onto a hard drive or other storage device and must run the Software from the included DVD/CD-ROM (although the Software may automatically copy a portion of itself onto your hard drive during installation in order to run more efficiently):

(f) Use or copy the Software at a computer gaming center or any other location-based site: provided, that LICENSOR may offer you a separate site license agreement to make the Software available for commercial use:

(g) Reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise modify the Software, in whole

(h) Remove or modify any proprietary notices or labels contained on or within the Software;

(i) Transport, export or re-export (directly or indirectly) into any country forbidden to receive such Software by any export laws or accompanying regulations or otherwise violate such laws or regulations, that may be amended from time to time.

#### THE SOFTWARE UTILITIES

The Software may contain a level editor or other similar type tools, assets and other materials (the "Software Utilities") that permit you to construct or customize new game levels and other related game materials for personal use in connection with the Software ("Customized Game Materials"). In the event the Software contains such Software Utilities, the use of the Software Utilities is subject to the following additional terms, conditions and restrictions:

(a) All Customized Game Materials created by you are exclusively owned by LICENSOR and/ or its licensors (as the case may be) and you hereby transfer, assign and convey to LICENSOR all right, title and interest in and to the Customized Game Materials and LICENSOR and its permitted licensors may use any Customized Game Materials made publicly available to you for any purpose whatsoever, including but not limited to for purposes of advertising and promoting the Software:

(b) You will not use or permit third parties to use the Software Utilities and the Customized Game Materials created by you for any commercial purposes, including but not limited to distributing, leasing, licensing, renting, selling, or otherwise exploiting, transferring or

assigning the ownership of such Customized Game Materials;

(c) Customized Game Materials must be distributed solely for free; provided, that you may contact LICENSOR for a license to commercially exploit the Customized Game Materials which LICENSOR may grant or deny in its sole discretion;

(d) Customized Game Materials shall not contain modifications to any other executable

files;

(e) Customized Game Materials must be used alone and can be created if the Customized Game Materials will be used exclusively in combination with the commercially released retail version of the Software.

(f) Customized Game Materials cannot contain libelous, defamatory or other illegal material, material that is scandalous or invades the rights of privacy or publicity of any third party, or contain any trademarks, copyright-protected work or other property of third parties (without a valid license); and

(g) All Customized Game Materials must contain the proper credits to the authors of the Customized Game Materials and must indicate that LICENSOR is not the author of the Customized Game Materials with additional language that "THIS MATERIAL IS NOT MADE, GUARANTEED OR SUPPORTED BY THE PUBLISHER OF THE SOFTWARE OR ITS AFFILIATES.

#### LIMITED WARRANTY

LICENSOR warrants to you (if you are the initial and original purchaser of the Software) that the original storage medium holding the Software is free from defects in material and workmanship under normal use and service for 90 days from the date of purchase. If for any reason you find a defect in the storage medium during the warranty period, LICENSOR agrees to replace, free of charge, any Software discovered to be defective within the warranty period as long as the Software is currently being manufactured by LICENSOR. If the Software is no longer available, LICENSOR retains the right to substitute a similar program of equal or greater value. This warranty is limited to the storage medium containing the Software as originally provided by LICENSOR and is not applicable to normal wear and tear. This warranty shall not be applicable and shall be void if the defect has arisen through abuse, mistreatment, or neglect. Any implied warranties prescribed by statute are expressly limited to the 90-day period described above.

Except as set forth above, this warranty is in lieu of all other warranties, whether oral or written, express or implied, including any other warranty of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose or non-infringement, and no other representations or warranties of any kind shall be binding on LICENSOR.

When returning the Software subject to the limited warranty above, please send the original Software only to the LICENSOR address specified below and include: your name and return address; a photocopy of your dated sales receipt; and a brief note describing the defect and the system on which you are running the Software.

IN NO EVENT WILL LICENSOR BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL. INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES RESULTING FROM POSSESSION, USE OR MALFUNCTION OF THE SOFTWARE, INCLUDING DAMAGES TO PROPERTY, LOSS OF GOODWILL, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION AND, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, DAMAGES FOR PERSONAL INJURIES, EVEN IF LICENSOR HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMA-GES. LICENSOR'S LIABILITY SHALL NOT EXCEED THE ACTUAL PRICE PAID FOR USE OF THE SOFTWARE. SOME STATES/COUNTRIES DO NOT ALLOW LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY LASTS AND/OR THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. SO THE ABOVE LIMITATIONS AND/OR EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF LIABILITY MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU. THIS WARRANTY GIVES YOU SPECIFIC LEGAL RIGHTS. AND YOU MAY HAVE OTHER RIGHTS THAT VARY FROM JURISDICTION TO JURISDICTION.

#### **TERMINATION**

This Agreement will terminate automatically if you fail to comply with its terms and conditions. In such event, you must destroy all copies of the Software and all of its component parts. You can also end this Agreement by destroying the Software and all copies and reproductions of the Software and deleting and permanently purging the Software from any client server or computer on which it has been installed.

#### **EQUITABLE REMEDIES**

You hereby agree that if the terms of this Agreement are not specifically enforced, LICEN-SOR will be irreparably damaged, and therefore you agree that LICENSOR shall be entitled, without bond, other security, proof of damages, to appropriate equitable remedies with respect any of this Agreement, in addition to any other available remedies.

#### INDEMNITY

You agree to indemnify, defend and hold LICENSOR, its partners, licensors, affiliates, contractors, officers, directors, employees and agents harmless from all damages, losses and expenses arising directly or indirectly from your acts and omissions to act in using the Software pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

#### MISCELLANEOUS

This Agreement represents the complete agreement concerning this license between the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and representations between them. It may be amended only by a writing executed by both parties. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, such provision shall be reformed only to the extent necessary to make it enforceable and the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected. This Agreement shall be construed under England and Welsh law. Leicester, Leicestershire.

If you have any questions concerning this license, you may contact in writing Kalypso Media UK Ltd.

KALYPSO MEDIA UK LTD.
4 Milbanke Court
Milbanke Way
Bracknell
Berkshire
RG12 1RP
United Kingdom

www.kalypsomedia.com www.facebook.com/kalypsomediaint

# <3E>

## Technical Support and Customer Service <

If you have any questions or problems with one of our products, we offer you answers and solutions to the frequently asked questions at our forums:

## forum.kalypsomedia.com

You may also reach our technical support team via email at:

## support@kalypsomedia.com

or phone:

Tel: +49 (0)6241 50 22 40 (Mo - Fr 10am GMT - 4pm GMT)

Fax: +49 (0)6241 506 19 11

International rates may apply!

Before contacting us, please make sure you know the complete product name and can provide proof of purchase. Please be as precise as possible when describing technical errors and include error messages and any other helpful information if possible. Please understand that we are not able to answer questions regarding general gameplay and hints via email or phone.

# www.kalypsomedia.com www.facebook.com/kalypsomediaint

kalyps@





Urban Empire © 2017 Kalypso Media Group GmbH. All rights reserved. Developed by Reborn Interactive. Published by Kalypso Media UK Ltd. All other logos, copyrights and trademarks are property of their respective owners.